THE HAPPY LAND
A stone built into the wall adjoining Fraser Place bears the inscription: Erected by James Thain in loving memory of his wife SUSAN DURNO died 17th January 1901 aged 61 years, the said JAMES THAIN died 11th January 1906 aged 81 years.

Like many of his peers, James Thain was a quarry worker.  In September 1865 he obtained a 99 year building lease on Station Road on which he proceeded to erect a tenement building capable of housing six families, which in 1881 numbered 38 people. Time, as they say, never stands still and in 1887 the building plot was divided into two portions – the area on which Thain had built his property being retained by him and the remainder being leased by Andrew Petrie who built the magnificent building fronting on to Station Road and High Street. 

Thain’s original rental for his piece of ground was £1 9/- (£1.45p) per annum. Following 1887 this was reduced to 14/6d (72.5p) whilst Andrew Petrie’s annual rental was £1. 2s 6d (£1.12½p).

As with any contract, conditions were attached and one of these was that a house with a specified minimum value had to be built within ten years and this house had to be maintained throughout the duration of the lease.  At the end of the lease, if it was not renewed, the land and any building thereon was to fall back to the estate.  To avoid this situation, the leaseholder could apply to the heritor to have the lease converted to a feu. This entailed paying over a sum of money to the heritor (more or less equivalent to the then market value of the land) and an annual feu duty was then paid (which was to be in perpetuity).

Many building leases were thus converted from the 1960s onwards when the local authority was giving grants towards the installation of bathrooms and kitchens in older properties lacking these facilities – the local authority would not pay grants if the building lease had less than about thirty years to run. The feu duty then levied was considerably greater than the annual rental being paid on the land, but one has to think that the rental figure had been set some sixty or so years earlier.

When the original lease on Thain’s Buildings matured, no approaches had been made to redeem it and the land and buildings reverted to Kemnay Estates. After lying vacant for some years, the property and land was acquired by Dennis Kindness, who upgraded the property with a shop on the ground floor and accommodation above. 
